
VHCB Responses to Questions on the Farmworker Housing Repair Loan Program RFP  
 

 How does VHCB view collaborations between non-profits, e.g. combining the expertise of two 
organizations to build a strong project proposal? 
 
VHCB supports collaborations between non-profits that have multiple areas of expertise.  
Partners should have clearly defined areas of responsibility with a written statement signed 
by both organizations, and the proposal must have one fiduciary agent. 
 

 Does the program need to operate statewide, or can it focus on a target geographic area (e.g. 
Franklin, Orleans and Addison Counties)? 
 
The program must be open to farmers across the state, but VHCB recognizes that the need 
and therefore lending activity may be focused in specific regions of the state. 
 

 Is weatherization work included or excluded within the definition of repairs? 
 
Weatherization work, particularly as it relates to health and safety concerns, is an eligible 
activity. 
 

 Can loan funds be used for weatherization and energy efficiency upgrades or does the scope of 
work need to focus solely on health and safety code issues? 

 
Loan funds can be used for weatherization and energy efficiency upgrades; however, projects 
addressing health and safety issues would be given highest priority for consideration.  To the 
extent that other resources are available to address weatherization, VHCB expects that the 
program administrator would seek to access those sources as leverage.   
 

 Is relocation expense an eligible cost for use of funds? 
 

Yes, relocation could be an eligible cost for use of funds.  The relocation cost can be part of the 
project budget and not an administrative cost. 
 

 Assuming that there will be a covenant recorded against the parcel where the housing is located 
that will restrict the use of the housing for farmworkers: 

o Will VHCB require senior lien holders to subordinate to the covenant? 
 
We do not intend to record a covenant against the parcel, there will only be a 
mortgage. 
 

o Who will be responsible for monitoring compliance with the covenant and how will 
compliance be demonstrated? 

 
We will expect responses to the RFP to propose a plan to monitor compliance during 
the ten year term of the loan to ensure that the housing is still used for farmworkers.  
The plan should also include periodic inspection to ensure adequate maintenance. 
 



 Will VHCB be the lender?  Will VHCB take a mortgage deed to secure the loan amount (or expect 
the agency administering the program to hold a mortgage)? 
 
VHCB will not be the lender, and we will expect that the administrator of the fund will hold a 
mortgage to secure the loan amount.  The loans will be 0% deferred and forgivable 10 years. 
 

o Will VHCB require an appraisal of the subject housing to support the loan value? 
 
No, VHCB will not require an appraisal to support the loan value. 
 

 What is VHCB’s definition of “actively engaged in farming”? 
 
Applicants should use Vermont’s Use Value Appraisal definition of farmer, with some 
allowance for flexibility for high priority projects. The Use Value Appraisal definition of farmer 
requires one half of the farmer’s gross income come from the business of farming as defined 
by the IRS in Regulation 1.175-3 under the IRS code of 1986. The full Use Value Appraisal 
definition can be found here.   
 

 How will farmers adequately “demonstrate that they have a need for affordable resources to 
address their farmworker housing needs”? 

 
To qualify, the loan applicant will be under the USDA (FSA and NRCS) income threshold for 
federal programs and will also explain why conventional financing for farm labor housing is 
unavailable or infeasible for the farm business.  A link to the income threshold is here. 

 

 Would VHCB allow for a loan in excess of $30,000?  If so, under what circumstances?  
 
Respondents to the RFP should include a process for decision making around exceeding the 
limit of $30,000 for loans.  
 

 Would it be possible to use the funds to make grants of under $5,000 to make qualifying 
repairs? 
 
We will consider proposals that intend to grant amounts of $5,000 or less.  However, we 
expect that grants under $5,000 would be secured by a mortgage by the administrator of the 
fund to ensure that the property is used as farmworker housing for ten years after the award. 
 

 Does “farmworker housing” include farmer-owner-occupied housing for purposes of this 
program? 

 
Given the limited resources currently, farmer owner occupied housing is not eligible for 
purposes of this program.  We may consider this in the future. We are hopeful that the entity 
administering this program would be able to direct farmers to other resources that could 
potentially assist with farmer occupied housing. 
 

 Is there a farmer contribution/match requirement?  If so, can in-kind services count toward this 
match?   

 

https://agriculture.vermont.gov/land-use-renewable-energy-0/current-use-and-value-appraisal-program
https://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/national/about/?cid=nrcs144p2_015638#:~:text=A%3A%20The%20Adjusted%20Gross%20Income,income%20was%20from%20farm%20income


VHCB will not require a match but encourages the administrator to seek all forms of leverage 
available for these projects and document the leverage for projects.  In-kind services would be 
considered leverage. 
 

 Is there an expectation that the VHCB loan funds will leverage other sources?  If so, what 
sources? 

 
VHCB will not require leverage but encourages the administrator to seek all forms of leverage 
available for these projects.  Some sources we expect will be available to match with these 
loan projects include weatherization funds, private loans, farmer contributions and donated 
labor and materials.    
 

 Are the marketing and outreach costs for this covered by the administrative fee or out of other 
grant funds?  Same question with respect to any closing costs (appraisal, title, legal, etc.) for 
each loan. 
 
Yes, these costs are expected to be included in the proposed administrative fee. 
 

 Can a farmer receive more than one loan? 
 
Yes, a farmer can receive more than one loan as long as each project is a priority based on the 
criteria developed for ranking applications. 
 

 What is the time period for completing the work funded by the loan, or is this part of what the 
implementing agency will include in the implementation plan provided to VHCB by March 14, 
2022? 
 
Proposals will need to include a proposed approximate schedule for implementation and 
expenditure.  Proposals that deploy resources and address this need in a shorter time frame 
may be more competitive.  
 

 What kind of experience in agriculture will VHCB expect the team implementing the program to 
have? 
 
The organization administering the funds should demonstrate the ability to work with farmers 
and farmworkers or should have a plan to partner with, or hire, an organization or 
individual(s) with experience and familiarity working with farms.  

 

 Can we assume that applicants will be required to show evidence of worker’s compensation and 
unemployment insurance and are not on any state or federal debarment list? 
 
Yes. 
 

 Can repair work be done by any qualified contractors, including work done by farm employees? 
 

Yes. 



 Is housing orientation and other educational programming to support home health and safety 
within the scope? 
 
Yes. 
 

 Farmers who have recently (within 3-6 months) invested in upgrading their farmworker housing 
have asked if any of these funds could be used to reimburse very recent purchases. Would these 
farmworker housing repairs be eligible? 

 
In this initial phase VHCB does not anticipate being able to meet this need given the limited 
resources. 


